
Town of Minnesott Beach  

Board of Commissioners’ Meeting  

March 12, 2019 

Minutes 

 

The meeting of the Board of Commissioners (BOC), Town of Minnesott Beach, was held 

Tuesday March 12, 2019 at 7:00 P.M at the Minnesott Beach Town Hall. 

 

Board members present:  Mayor Fowler, Commissioner Adam Garfinkel, Commissioner 

Cliff Braly and Commissioner Starr Murphy.  Commissioner Pete Hall was via phone.    

 

Others present: Town Manager Carolyn Braly, Town Clerk Donna Scott, Ben Hollowell, 

Ed Kujat and Bob Dillard.   

 

Mayor Fowler welcomed everyone to the meeting and called the meeting to order at 

7:00pm with a moment of silence and led everyone in the pledge of allegiance to the flag.   

 

Mayor Fowler called for any discussion or revision to the March 12, 2019 agenda.  

Commissioner Hall asked to have the Financial Report moved to follow the Planning 

Board report and Mayor Fowler asked to move the Special Closed Session to follow New 

Business.  Commissioner Braly moved accept the agenda as amended.  All ayes.   

 

Mayor Fowler called for any discussion or revision to February 12, 2019 regular meeting 

minutes.  Commissioner Hall moved to approve the minutes.  All ayes.   

 

Public Comment:  none 

 

MG&CC – presentation/discussion.  Mayor Fowler asked board members from the 

Minnesott Golf & Country Club to come to the board meeting to present to the 

Commissioners their proposal to the town.  The premise is the town would purchase the 

real property and lease it back to the country club.  There are two specifications:  1. the 

purchase price of $280,00 and 2. a nominal lease amount.   He said there are two issues to 

deal with:  the purchase of the land and the lease back (triple net lease).   

 

Mr. Kujat introduced himself as the current president of the MG&CC board of directors, 

Ben Hollowell, vice president of the MG&CC board of directors and Bob Dillard a club 

member.  He said the club has been opened since1969.  He said the club has had its ups 

and down over the years.  In recent years, there has been a significant decrease in 

membership because of the decline of the economy throughout the country.  Mr. Kujat 

said they needed to take back to the membership a purchase price and a long-term lease 

amount for a nominal amount.  He said purchase price would be for the land and buildings 

only and would not include the golf course equipment or the clubhouse equipment.  They 

would continue to operate the club, maintain the buildings, golf course, golf course 

equipment, the pool and the boat ramp.  The benefits of this sale would reduce the club’s 

out of pocket costs on a month to month basis by approximately $3,000.  With the current 

membership, this would be close to a balanced budget.  The benefits to Minnesott Beach 

would be to provide some stability to the housing market.  Mr. Kujat said they had looked 

at other alternatives with no success.  He said he thought if the club was in a stable 



financial position, the club could continue to do things to grow their membership.  He 

asked for comments and questions from the Commissioners.   

Commissioner Starr asked about having a golf management company come in.  Mr. 

Dillard said they had one in about 3 years ago and they were just too expensive.  She also 

asked about opening up the course to the public.  Mr. Kujat said the original rules were if 

you were a Pamlico resident, you could only play twice a year.  Two years ago, the club 

opened up play to Pamlico County residents on an unlimited basis after 12:00pm.  

Commissioner Starr asked about offering play to all first responders, police officers and 

military, both active and retired.  Mr. Dillard said they were continuing to try to find ways 

to increase membership and to get more folks out to play golf.  Commissioner Starr asked 

where the septic system is for the condominiums and if that property could be used for 

anything else?  Mr. Kujat said he did not know where the septic tanks are but the drain 

field was on the driving range.  She said she was excited there was waterfront property.  

Mr. Kujat said the club property extends from 10’ off the condos to the water.  It does 

offer water access for club members.  Commissioner Braly said he thought that creek is 

considered a primary nursery.   

Mr. Dillard said the reason they have been hesitant to open the boat ramp was because of 

parking issues.  He said they were a golf club and did not want members to not be able to 

find parking in July and August because of boat trailers.  Commissioner Hall said he had 

concerns that the club would close in a year or two.  Mr. Kujat said the town would own 

the property, not the bank.  Even though the town has control over what might be built on 

the property because of zoning, it could be in the hands of the bank for months and 

months.  Commissioner Hall asked if he could see their operating income and expenses 

and was told yes.  Mr. Hollowell said if the club failed, the town would own the property 

and could rent the building(s) or whatever they wanted.  As long as the club is running, 

they would have all of the financial responsibilities of maintenance, payroll and insurance 

for the club.  Commissioner Garfinkel asked if the town would be completely indemnified 

under a triple net lease.  Mr. Hollowell said, yes.  Commissioner Hall will arrange to take 

a look at their books.  Mayor Fowler said the commissioners could go into closed session 

after this meeting to discuss this further.  Mr. Dillard said members at their annual meeting 

were supportive of this proposal.  And it is an investment in the town.  Mayor Fowler 

thanked Mr. Hollowell, Mr. Kujat and Mr. Dillard for coming to the meeting.   

 

Town Manager’s report:  Mrs. Braly reported there was one approved zoning permit 

applications issued for a deck added to Indian Bluff Drive.   

Mrs. Braly reported she’d heard nothing from the bank in response to the certified letter 

sent to them in February to bring the property back into livable condition or demolish it.  

Mayor Fowler asked her to follow up with another certified letter to inform the bank that 

effective April 1, 2019, the town will begin charging $500 per day for ordinance violation 

of section 91.06 subject to section 10.99 penalty.   

Mrs. Braly said she had met with a new FEMA representative and the process is 

continuing.   

Mrs. Braly asked she be given articles for the newsletter by April 1, 2019.   

 

Planning Board Report:  Commissioner Garfinkel said the Planning Board met in 
March.  The board recommended adding (C) Condemned buildings to section 91.07 

Dilapidated Buildings.  Mayor Fowler asked the Town Manager to write a letter to the 
property owner of the new house being built on Bennett Road. 



Current Finances:  Commissioner Hall reported revenues are coming in as expected with 

expenses within the budgeted totals.  The Town’s current assets as of February 28, 2019 

are:  First Citizen's Bank Checking $3,522.72; First Citizen's MM $308,232.43; CressCom 

Bank’s Savings $218,454.19; North Carolina Management Trust is $206,729.07; Petty 

Cash $50.00. The town currently has CDs at First South Bank & Savings totaling 

$228,596.28.  Total assets for the Town are $989,067.41.  The commissioners all have a 

copy of the financial report which, by reference, is made a part of the minutes and may be 

viewed at the Town Hall.  Commissioner Hall moved to purchase a 2nd computer, desk top 

or laptop, for the office at a cost of up to $1000.  All ayes.   

 

 

Old Business for discussion and possible motion or action:   

Drainage projects:  Commissioner Braly said the hole in the right-of-way on 

Brinson at the gate of fenced in area has been repaired.  Donna Scott’s vehicle tires 

sank when she drove over it a week or so ago.   Commissioner Braly said the 

culvert in Hardison Dr just north of Brinson Dr. will need to be replaced.  He said 

Paul Toler will do the work.   

Commissioner Braly said the culvert from the mobile home park is blocked on the 

river side and needs to be cleaned out.  He said he would take a look at it to 

determine what needs to be done. 

Commissioner Braly said he would schedule Josh Nobles to shoot the ditches on 

Phillips so plans can be made on what to do about the drainage issues.   

 

 

New Business for discussion and possible action:   

Spring Clean-up:  Commissioner Braly moved to have the Spring Clean-up set for 

May 2 & 3.  All ayes.  He also said Paul Toler was donating a truck and driver for 

the clean-up 

 

Miscellaneous:   Commissioner Hall moved to nominated Mayor Fowler and Mayor Pro 

Tem Garfinkel to act on behalf of the Town in negotiating the purchase of real property.  

All ayes.   

 

Closed Session:  Mayor Fowler asked for a motion to go into Closed Session to establish 

the Town’s position on the acquisition of real property.   Commissioner Hall so moved.  

All ayes.   

 

Commissioner Hall move to return to regular session.  All ayes.  Commissioner Hall  

There being no further business, Commissioner Hall moved to adjourn the regular meeting.  

All Ayes. 

 

 

 

Respectfully Submitted,  

 

Donna Scott, Town Clerk 

 


